
Vale of White Horse District Council
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 23 January 2020

Page 1

Agenda
Contact: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services 
Telephone number 01235 422522
Email: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 13 January 2020
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A meeting of the 
Scrutiny Committee
will be held on Thursday 23 January 2020 at 7.00 pm 
Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB

Members of the Committee:
Councillors:
Nathan Boyd (Chairman)
Jerry Avery
Ron Batstone

Samantha Bowring
Cheryl Briggs
Andy Foulsham

Robert Maddison
Mike Pighills
Max Thompson

Substitutes Councillors
Paul Barrow
Eric Batts
Hayleigh Gascoigne

Alison Jenner
Diana Lugova
Sarah Medley

Patrick O’Leary
Janet Shelley
Elaine Ware

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read.  For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting.

Margaret Reed
Head of Legal and Democratic 

mailto:steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 23 January 2020

Page 2

Agenda
Open to the Public including the Press

1. Apologies for absence 
 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

2. Minutes 
(Pages 3 - 7) 
 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Scrutiny Committee minutes of the meeting held 
on 28 November 2019.  

3. Declarations of interest 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.   

4. Urgent business and chairman's announcements 
 
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be considered 
as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, 
and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

5. Public participation 
 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered to 
speak.  

REPORTS AND ISSUES FOR THE CONSIDERATION OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

6. Council tax reduction scheme 2020/21 
(Pages 8 - 63) 
 
To consider the head of finance’s report.  

7. Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings 
(Pages 64 - 66) 
 
To review the attached scrutiny work schedule. Please note, although the dates are 
confirmed, the items under consideration are subject to being withdrawn, added to or 
rearranged without further notice.



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 28 November 2019 Sc.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Scrutiny Committee
held on Thursday 28 November 2019 at 7.00 pm
at the Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB 

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors Nathan Boyd (Chair), Jerry Avery, Samantha Bowring, 
Cheryl Briggs, Andy Foulsham, Robert Maddison, Mike Pighills and Max Thompson

Officers: Steve Culliford, Adrian Duffield, Phil Ealey, Liz Hayden and Emma Turner

Also present: Councillor Jenny Hannaby and Councillor Emily Smith

Sc.12 Apologies for absence 

Councillor Ron Batstone had sent his apologies for absence.  

Sc.13 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record the minutes of the committee meeting held on 
19 September 2019 and agree that the chairman signs them as such.  

Sc.14 Declarations of interest 

None

Sc.15 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

None

Sc.16 Public participation 

None

Sc.17 Planning enforcement annual review 2018/19 

The committee considered the head of planning’s report, which reviewed performance of 
the planning enforcement service from 1 April 2018 to 30 September 2019.  The report set 
out the role of the service, the legal requirements, and the relevant local plan policies.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 28 November 2019 Sc.2

The report also set out the limitations of the service.  The focus was on remedying 
planning harm, but not to ‘police’ the district or punish those that had followed the rules.  
Other than unauthorised works to listed buildings, protected trees and the unauthorised 
display of advertisements, breaches of planning control were not criminal acts.  The 
service provided by the council was set out in the planning enforcement statement, which 
was published on the council’s website.  This explained how the council monitored 
implementation of planning conditions and how the council investigated unauthorised 
development.  The statement was being reviewed to update it in line with the latest 
guidance.  

The report also set out the enforcement workload, analysed the unresolved cases, and 
showed performance against the council’s targets.  The committee noted that the service 
had just missed the target to investigate and determine the cause of 80 per cent of cases 
within six weeks of the original enquiry: 75 per cent had been achieved.  However, the 
increase in voluntary compliance was over twice the target as more people were engaging 
with the planning system.  

The team aimed to get the public to engage rather than to impose immediate penalties.  
On larger sites, officers would attempt to be proactive by monitoring development as it 
happened to pick up issues in a timely manner.  The enforcement team had taken formal 
action where necessary and had defended successfully its decisions at appeal.  Officers 
gave examples of their more complex cases.  

The Leader of the Council, Councillor Emily Smith, attended the meeting on behalf of the 
Cabinet member for planning.  The leader asked the committee for its comments on the 
report and for any suggestions on how the team should prioritise its work in the future.  

The committee noted that ability to improve performance was restricted by resourcing 
difficulties.  However, performance compared favourably against benchmark councils.  
Although the South and Vale team was larger than average when fully staffed, it had a 
larger number of planning applications to monitor and more strategic housing sites than 
other benchmark authorities.  

One area that the committee suggested required attention was construction traffic 
management plans agreed as part of a planning permission.  Officers recognised the 
problems with traffic management routing, the enforcement of which was partly the Vale’s 
responsibility and partly the county council’s responsibility as highway authority.  
Councillors noted that the officers were in ongoing dialogue with the county council to 
improve these and make the plans more meaningful.  

South Oxfordshire’s Scrutiny Committee had suggested that a councillors’ round table 
session should be held to revise the joint planning enforcement statement.  This 
committee agreed, supporting a joint round table session with South’s councillors.  This 
would help define where resources were currently targeted and also help determine which 
issues the planning enforcement team should prioritise in future.  

The committee also considered that the council should do more to promote its planning 
portal and online guide planning enforcement.  This could coincide with the publicity for the 
revised enforcement statement.  

RESOLVED: to 

Page 4



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 28 November 2019 Sc.3

(a) note the head of planning’s report and thank the planning enforcement team for its 
work over the past 18 months; 

(b) recommend that the Cabinet member for planning organises a joint South and Vale 
councillors’ round table session to help revise the planning enforcement statement; 
and 

(c) recommend that the Cabinet member publicises the council’s online planning 
enforcement portal following the councils’ adoption of the revised planning 
enforcement statement.  

Sc.18 Homelessness and rough sleeping strategy 

The committee considered the head of housing and environment’s report on the draft 
homelessness and rough sleeping strategy 2020 to 2025.  The strategy was the subject of 
public consultation; Scrutiny Committee was asked to feed its views back to Cabinet.  

The Homelessness Act 2002 required the council to review its strategy every five years.  
The current joint homelessness strategy with South Oxfordshire District Council would 
expire in September 2020.  As part of this review, officers had taken into account the 
government’s intention to half rough sleeping by 2022 and eradicate it by 2027.  The 
addition of ‘tackling rough sleeping’ was the biggest difference compared to the current 
homelessness strategy.  The strategy and action plan must be submitted to the 
government for approval.  

The Cabinet member for housing and environment reported that although homelessness 
and rough sleepers had increased nationwide, this was not reflected in the Vale.  In 
2018/19 alone, the council had assisted 420 households at risk of homelessness.  The 
number of households in temporary accommodation had also fallen, and the number of 
rough sleepers recorded in the Vale in November 2018 was nine.  Against benchmark 
authorities, the Vale’s figures were very low.  

The council had adopted a preventative approach rather than reactive.  This was 
continued in the draft strategy, which had the following aims:

 To prevent homelessness whenever possible 
 To end incidents of homelessness at the earliest opportunity 
 To end the need for rough sleeping 

To achieve these aims, the strategy had five objectives:
1. To improve county-wide partnership working to prevent and reduce homelessness 
2. To minimise the use of temporary accommodation
3. To further develop the council’s housing needs service to prevent and relieve 

homelessness at the earliest opportunity 
4. To improve access to emergency accommodation and increase support for rough 

sleepers 
5. To improve access to sustainable accommodation for households that are either at 

risk of homelessness or who are homeless

Officers reported that they worked in close collaboration with partner councils and 
organisations.  The council relied on these partnerships for its success.  Officers did not 
use a gatekeeping approach, rather households at risk of homelessness were encouraged 
to approach the council at the earliest opportunity, as early intervention was a key 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 28 November 2019 Sc.4

ingredient in preventing homelessness.  A range of solutions were available to suit 
differing circumstances.  The portfolio of options was set out in the strategy.  

The new strategy had a bigger focus on tackling rough sleeping.  Officers intended to 
increase both the housing and support available for rough sleepers, including a Housing 
First model, that provided accommodation together with support for rough sleepers.  
Officers were investigating the possibility of a Housing First project in the Vale.  

The committee supported the aims and objectives of the draft strategy and reviewed the 
action plan.  The success of the strategy would be measured against key performance 
indicators and targets, which would be set annually.  The strategy would also be reviewed 
annually, and the findings published on the council’s website.  

Councillors suggested that the strategy should strive for better connections with other 
agencies to provide fast response for those in need.  Councillors also suggested exploring 
best practice on how to establish accurate numbers of homeless people and rough 
sleepers; this could be included as an additional objective.  Further, councillors suggested 
that the strategy should refer to how the council would engage and help people with 
specialist needs.  It should also cross-reference the work of the Community Safety 
Partnership.  

The committee suggested that the strategy or its action plan should include key 
performance indicators.  Alternatively, the strategy should state that the aim was to build 
on current targets.  The strategy should also set out the level of resourcing required to 
deliver the action plan.  Officers agreed to take these suggestions into account when 
updating the strategy prior to its submission to Cabinet for adoption.  

The committee also noted that officers would be publishing a guide on how to help 
homeless people.  

In answer to a question from a councillor, officers agreed to find out whether the council 
enforced the empty home provision and advise committee members outside of the 
meeting.  

The chairman asked councillors to make any further suggestions to the officers to take into 
account in the strategy and action plan.  Councillors were also asked to inform officers of 
any specific case issues where they had concerns.  

The committee noted that following the consultation period, the final strategy would be 
submitted to Cabinet for approval on 31 January 2020.  

RESOLVED: to 

(a) welcome the draft homelessness and rough sleeping strategy 2020 to 2025; and 

(b) recommend the Cabinet member for housing and environment and officers to 
consider the following suggestions to further improve the draft strategy before 
submitting it to Cabinet for adoption:

 explore best practice on how to establish accurate numbers of homeless people 
and rough sleepers  

 strive for better connections with other agencies to provide fast response for 
those in need  

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 28 November 2019 Sc.5

 refer to how the council could better engage and help people with specialist 
needs  

 include a reference to the work of the Community Safety Partnership  
 include key performance indicators or state that the aim is to build on current 

targets  
 set out the level of resourcing required to deliver the strategy and its action plan  

Sc.19 Scrutiny work programme 

The committee reviewed and updated its work programme, adding an item to review the 
routing of A34 traffic diversions.  

The meeting closed at 9.00 pm

Page 7



1

Scrutiny Committee Report

Report of Head of Finance
Author: James Connolly
Telephone: 01235 422491
Textphone: 18001 01235 422491
E-mail: james.connolly@southandvale.gov.uk
Executive member responsible: Andrew Crawford
Tel: 01235 772134
E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 23 January 2020

Council tax reduction scheme 2020/21 

Recommendation

     That the committee reviews the proposed council tax reduction scheme 
commencing 2020/21 following a public consultation and makes any 
recommendations to the Cabinet member for Finance

Purpose of Report

1. The purpose of this report is to allow the committee to review the proposed council 
tax reduction scheme that will be adopted for the financial year 2020/21, until such 
time as members wish to change the scheme and, invites the committee to make 
any recommendations it may have to the Cabinet member for Finance.

Strategic Objectives 

2. The council is required by statute to adopt a scheme to help those on low incomes 
to meet their council tax liability.  In accordance with the strategic objective 
“running an efficient council” by having a scheme we meet this objective whilst, at 
the same time, considering the views of residents, service users and other 
stakeholders.

Background

3. From April 2013, the national scheme to help people on low incomes pay their 
Council Tax (Council Tax Benefit), was abolished and a local scheme was 
introduced called Council Tax Reduction (CTR). The Government continued to 
fund the new scheme, but with a 10 per cent reduction in funding from the previous 

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



2

CTB scheme. In 2013, the council decided to keep the new CTR scheme as close 
to the old CTB scheme as possible.

4. For the financial year 2014 onwards, the council decided several changes for 
working age people (the scheme for people of pension age is decided nationally by 
the Government) would be made to ensure everyone contributes on a fairer basis 
to council services and help act as an incentive to encourage people to seek work.  
The changes were: 

 The removal of second adult rebate – where the applicant liable for Council Tax 
lives with another adult who is not liable for Council Tax, so does not receive a 
single person discount. If that other adult’s income is below a certain amount, 
the applicant can receive help with their Council Tax based on the other adult’s 
income, regardless of the applicant’s income.

 The calculation of working age CTR is based on 91.5 per cent of their Council 
Tax liability, rather than 100 per cent. There were exemptions to this. These 
were applicants who were considered disabled and anyone in receipt of War 
Widows Pensions or War Disablement Pensions. To be considered disabled, 
the applicant had to receive one of the following in their Council Tax Reduction 
award:

o Disability premium.
o Enhanced disability premium.
o Severe disability premium.
o A disability premium for dependants.  
o Enhanced disability premium for dependants.
o Disabled earnings disregard.
o A Council Tax disability reduction.
o In receipt of Employment Support Allowance at any rate.

 An applicant living in a property banded F, G and H would have their CTR 
calculated on band E. The same exemptions to this applied as to the reduction 
of CTR to 91.5 per cent.

 The period of extended payment (where an applicant receives CTR based on 
the income they had when unemployed when they return to employment) was 
extended from 4 weeks to 13 weeks.

Proposals for 2020/21 onwards

5. It is proposed to make three amendments to the scheme that will operate from 
April 2020. In summary, it is proposed the changes will:

i. provide greater support for single parents with children under five years old
ii. widen the definition of who is considered disabled in order to be exempt from 
the current restrictions;
iii. benefit people who receive Bereavement Support Payments.

Page 9



3

Why are changes being proposed

6. Council tax collection data and independent reports indicate that the current 
minimum charge of 8.5 per cent can cause hardship for a number of residents, 
especially those who are single parents of working age with children under 
age five. The Government does not expect those in this category to have to find 
work and the change should help reduce any additional potential hardship that 
this minimum charge could bring them and their children.

7. Following the introduction of Universal Credit (UC), there are two further proposals 
to change the CTR to take account of the impact that some UC provisions have 
had on those who are considered disabled, and those in receipt of Bereavement 
Support Payments. 

Proposed changes to benefit single parents with children under five

8. Currently, single parents with children aged under five have their CTR calculated 
up to a maximum of 91.5 per cent and to a maximum of band E if they live in a 
higher banded property.

9. It is proposed to remove the 91.5 per cent limit when calculating their council tax 
bill, and remove the band E restriction for single parents with children under age 
five, so that qualifying residents will have their CTR calculated at 100 per cent of 
their council tax bill after any deductions and based on their property’s actual 
council tax band

10.The current system was designed to ensure everyone contributes fairly to council 
services and to encourage people to return to work. However, it is recognised that 
for single parents with children aged under 5, it can be more difficult to find 
childcare if their children are not in full-time education. In particular, single parents 
with children aged under three are not entitled to the free childcare offered by the 
Government. Also, the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) does not expect 
single parents on Income Support with children aged under five to work, and those 
on UC are not expected to work enough hours to make it possible to live 
independently of benefits.

Proposed changes to widen the definition of who is considered 
disabled in order to be exempt

11.Currently, those considered disabled are exempt from the calculation of their 
CTR to a maximum of 91.5 per cent and calculated to a maximum of band E if they 
live in a higher banded property.

12. It is proposed to widen the definition of who is considered disabled, in order 
to be exempt from paying council tax (e.g. CTR will be calculated on 100 per cent 
of their council tax bill and their actual council tax band).

13.When we made changes to the 2014 scheme, it was decided that those 
considered disabled would be exempt from any negative changes to the scheme 
due to difficulty in finding work. However, this exemption was based on premiums 
and benefits which have since been replaced by UC.  There are also certain 
elements within UC which perform the same function as disability premiums. 
These are the limited capability for work element (no longer available to new 

Page 10



4

applicants), and the limited capability for work related activity, which will also 
exempt applicants.

14.The Government recently announced a scheme to compensate people who have 
lost their entitlement to a severe disability premium after moving from legacy 
benefits to UC. Applicants who are entitled to this payment will also be exempt. 
Although the elements in UC do not completely overlap with the previous benefits 
and premiums, we believe this proposal is the best trade-off between helping 
applicants who are considered disabled for CTR purposes and ensuring the 
scheme is efficient to administer.

Proposed changes to benefit people who receive Bereavement 
Support Payments

15.Currently, Bereavement Support Payment (BSP) is counted as income when 
calculating an applicant’s CTR. However, it is proposed to disregard BSP as 
income from April 2020.

16.BSP is a relatively new social security benefit, introduced in April 2017. Unlike 
previous benefits to support bereavement, BSP is not counted as income and 
capital in means tested benefits. CTR, although means tested, is not a social 
security benefit and is counted as income and capital. The proposed change is to 
bring our CTR scheme into line with other means tested schemes and to 
minimise distress to applicants who have lost their partners.

Consultation on the proposed scheme 

17.  A four-week public consultation was undertaken between 11 September and 9 
October 2019. A total of 261 responses were received; 243 on line and 18 postal 
returns. Sixty-eight of the respondents were existing council tax reduction scheme 
recipients; 180 were non recipients; and three were stakeholder organisations.

18.  The consultation highlighted that there is overall support for the three proposed 
changes to the scheme whilst certain scheme changes received a variety of 
considerations.

19.On the proposal to remove the 91.5 per cent limit and the band E restriction 
when calculating the council tax bill for single parents with children aged under 
five, 60 per cent of respondents to this question either strongly agreed or 
agreed with the proposal. However, 20 per cent disagreed with this proposal and 
14 per cent neither agreed nor disagreed with the proposal. The main issue of 
contention was regarding removing the band E restriction. However, at the time of 
writing, the cost of this provision to the council was estimated to be around £42 per 
annum only.

20.On the proposal to widen the definition of who is considered disabled, 64 per 
cent of respondents to this question either strongly agreed or agreed with 
the proposal. However, 15 per cent disagreed with the proposal whilst 16 per cent 
neither agreed nor disagreed with the proposal. The most frequent comment made 
was about whether a person’s disability affects their ability to work, and therefore 
their ability, and responsibility, to pay council tax. In response to the comments it 
should be noted that, for those who are entitled to the Limited Capability for Work 
and Limited Capability for Work Related Activity in their Universal Credit, the 

Page 11



5

Department for Work and Pensions will already have assessed how their disability 
affects their ability to work before awarding these components. Also, Disability 
Living Allowance, Personal Independence Payments and Armed Forces 
Independence Payments are only paid to those considered in the greatest need to 
help them take part in everyday life and is awarded only after a medical 
assessment.

21.On the proposal to disregard Bereavement Support Payments as income when 
calculating an applicant’s council tax reduction, 73 per cent of respondents to 
this question either strongly agreed or agreed with the proposal. However, 10 
per cent of respondents disagreed whilst 13 per cent neither agreed nor disagreed 
with the proposal. There were a relatively low number of comments received to this 
proposal. The most frequent comment concerned the view that the proposed 
change is only acceptable if it is a temporary benefit and time limited. In response 
to those comments, Bereavement Support Allowance is a benefit which is paid 
for a maximum of 18 months, so the extra help is time limited.

Financial Implications

22. If all the proposals are accepted into the CTRS there will be an approximate overall 
cost of around £46,000 per annum. However, as the costs are shared by the 
precepting authorities approximately 78 per cent of the cost (£37,000) falls on 
Oxfordshire County Council, with the Police and Crime Commissioner (Thames 
Valley) funding £5,000 and the Vale £4,000.

Legal Implications

23.The current council tax reduction scheme was adopted in 2014/15.  There is a 
statutory duty to adopt a 2020/21 scheme by 11 March 2020.  If this deadline is not 
adhered to, the council’s 2014/15 scheme will automatically be rolled over as a 
consequence.

Risks

24.  There is a risk that the current CTRS caseload could increase significantly, 
resulting in expenditure exceeding current estimates. However, over recent years 
we have seen a reduction in the caseload from 5,214 in April 2017 to 4,891 in 
September 20019. There is no indication that this trend will not continue.

25.Changing a council tax reduction scheme which benefits certain categories of 
claimant without being supported by robust principles and consultation, could be 
open to legal challenge on equalities grounds. However, to mitigate this, the 
council has ensured that it has fully complied with the necessary consultation and 
equality requirements.

Other Implications

26.The council undertook an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) of the proposed 
changes. There were no actions to take, as by their nature, the proposals address 
the disadvantages which currently exist for certain categories of claimant 
considered at risk of discrimination. Where data was available, the EIA did not find 
any significant variance from the general population of either the Vale or nationally. 

Page 12



6

Conclusion

27.  The council must adopt a local council tax reduction scheme for 2020/21 by 11 
March 2020 and it is proposed that this be based on a scheme which intends to 
support residents on low incomes with help towards paying their council tax.  The 
proposals in this report as proposed by the Cabinet Member for Finance, is to 
enhance the current scheme to ensure it continues to be fair on all residents; 
protects the vulnerable; and, encourages residents back to work by continuing with 
the inclusion of work incentives.

Background Papers

The Council Tax Reduction Scheme consultation summary report, 
available on the council’s website using this link.

Page 13

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/council-tax-and-benefits/council-tax/council-tax-discounts/council-tax-reduction


 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme  
 
CONSULTATION SUMMARY 

A review of the feedback on the proposed changes to the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme 2020/21 
 
 

DECEMBER 2019 
 

   

Page 14



 

 
 

 

CONTENTS 

 
SUMMARY 1 

BACKGROUND TO THE CONSULTATION 2 

CONSULTATION METHODOLOGY 4 

KEY FINDINGS – QUANTITATIVE DATA 5 

KEY FINDINGS – QUALITATIVE DATA 10 

HOW WE HAVE USED RESULTS OF THE CONSULTATION 21 

FURTHER INFORMATION 21 

APPENDIX A – BACKGROUND TO THE CONSULTATION 22 

APPENDIX B – CONSULTATION COMMUNICATION 25 

APPENDIX C – SURVEY 27 

APPENDIX D – DEMOGRAPHIC DATA 38 

APPENDIX E – LIST OF ALL COMMENTS RECEIVED 43 

 

  

Page 15



 

1 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

SUMMARY 

This report has been produced to analyse the comments received on the proposed 
changes to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2020/21 consultation.  
 
We consulted on three proposed amendments to the scheme which we believe would 
benefit some people of working age who receive a reduction in their council tax 
payments. By law, we are required to have a scheme to help people on low incomes pay 
their council tax. 
 
The consultation ran for four weeks between 11 September and 9 October 2019. In total 
261 responses were received, specifically 243 online submissions and 18 postal, which 
were manually inputted into the online consultation system, Smart Survey. Participants 
were asked a range of questions relating to the proposed change within the scheme. 
 
The overwhelming majority of people responding, 254, did so on their own behalf (97%), 
with just four responses (2%) made on behalf of someone else (eg a carer) and only three 
responses (1%) from an agency, organisation or council. 
 
The consultation highlighted that there is overall support for the three proposed changes to 
the scheme. Certain scheme changes received a variety of considerations, which will be 
explored further in this report. 
 
Key findings: 
 
Proposal: remove the 91.5 per cent limit and the band E restriction when calculating the 
council tax bill for single parents with children aged under five  

A fairly high proportion of respondents to this question (60%) either strongly agree or agree 
with this proposal. However, one in five respondents (20%) disagree with this proposal, and 
a notable number (14%) neither agree nor disagree with the proposal. The issue raised 
most frequently in relation to this proposal was to remove the Band E restriction and base 
council tax reductions on the claimant’s actual council tax band. 

Proposal: widen the definition of who is considered disabled, in order to be exempt from 
paying council tax 

A high proportion of respondents to this question (64%) also either strongly agree or agree 
with the proposal. A moderate number of respondents disagree with the proposal (15%), 
and a similar number neither agree nor disagree with the proposal (16%). The most 
frequent comment made was about whether a person’s disability affects their ability to work, 
and therefore their ability, and responsibility, to pay council tax. 

Proposal: disregard Bereavement Support Payments as income when calculating an 
applicant’s council tax reduction amount 

A significant proportion of respondents to this question (73%) either strongly agree or agree 
with the proposal. This proposal received the highest percentage of agreement from those 
who answered the questions, compared with the other two proposals. A small number of 
respondents disagree (10%), and a similar number (13%) neither agree nor disagree with 
the proposal. There were a relatively low number of comments received to this proposal. 

Page 16



 

2 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

The most frequent comment concerned the view that the proposed change is only 
acceptable if it is a temporary benefit and time limited. 

Other key findings included: 

 A significant number of comments were made about keeping the Band E limit for 
two of the suggested proposals: to benefit single parents with children under five 
and widening the definition of who is considered disabled.  

 Many respondents stressed the importance of carrying out tests and checks to 
help prevent fraud and abuse of the system. 

 A number of respondents felt that the suggested proposals would make the 
scheme much fairer, they are a good thing and we have a duty of care to support 
those less able to support themselves. 

 

A summary of the findings is collated in this report and being presented to our scrutiny 
committee and Cabinet; we currently expect this to happen in January 2020. The 
original dates for these meetings were postponed due to Purdah – the pre-election 
publicity restrictions in the lead up to the December 2019 general election. Following 
any further comments and final approval, we will publish the updated Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme on our website www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ctrs. The changes will 
come into effect from 1 April 2020.  

 
  

Page 17



 

3 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

BACKGROUND TO THE CONSULTATION 

In April 2013, the national scheme to help people on low incomes pay their council tax was 
abolished and replaced by a new scheme called Council Tax Reduction (CTR).  

The Government continued to fund the new scheme, however local authorities can choose 
how it operates in their area. 
 
Since April 2014, we have been operating a slightly revised scheme for working age 
applicants.  The maximum amount of reduction they can receive is restricted to 91.5 per 
cent of their council tax bill. The reason for this limit was to ensure everyone contributes to 
council services and also to act as an incentive to encourage people to look for work.  

This restriction does not apply to those who are considered disabled, war pensioners or 
widows; they are able to claim up to 100 per cent off their council tax bill. 

What’s happening now? 

We are proposing to make three amendments to the scheme that will operate from April 
2020, which we believe will: 
 
1. provide greater support for single parents with children under five years old; 
2. widen the definition of who is considered disabled in order to be exempt from the current 
restrictions; 
3. benefit people who receive Bereavement Support Payments. 

More information  

The consultation material included a background summary document setting out why we 
are proposing the changes. This can be viewed in Appendix A.  

You can read more about the CTR scheme on our website www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ctrs 

  

Page 18



 

4 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

CONSULTATION METHODOLOGY 

The consultation methodology consisted of the following: 

 an email notification to 12 key stakeholders and interested parties, comprising of 
registered housing providers, the local Citizens Advice Bureau, other welfare 
organisations, care organisations and the local police; 

 an email notification to the general corporate consultee database, to provide a link to 
a background information document and details how to make representations. The 
notification was issued through the online consultation portal Smart Survey. A total of 
711 email notifications were sent out. A copy of the email notification can be found in 
Appendix B; 

 a letter to those consultees who opted in for postal correspondence. This included 
the background information document, the survey and a letter notification (see the 
email notification as an example of the text used in Appendix B). A total of 110 letters 
were issued; 

 informing District Councillors through our councillor e-newsletter; 
 a summary document of the key proposed changes to the Council Tax Reduction 

Scheme, for ease of understanding; 
 updating the website and publishing the background summary document and a link 

to the online survey; 
 a focused online survey, offering participants opportunity to indicate their level of 

agreement to the three proposed changes and comment on each of the proposed 
changes in a free text box. A copy of the survey can be found in Appendix C. 

 a four-week consultation period for submitting comments; 
 comments were captured from 261 respondents, three duplicate responses were 

removed, of the 98 partial responses received (these are where the survey has been 
partly completed), 31 were put through as responses (where the respondent had 
answered at least one of the three main questions) and three duplicates were 
removed;  

 a press release was issued on the consultation launch date, and social media 
messages (Twitter and Facebook) posted throughout the consultation period to 
further publicise and encourage wide participation from the public; 

 the consultation was carried out in conformity with our public engagement charter1. 
 

 
  

                                            
1 http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/about-us/have-your-say/our-commitments-public-engagement    

Page 19



 

5 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

KEY FINDINGS – QUANTITATIVE DATA 

The key quantitative findings from the consultation are summarised below. 
 
The first part of the survey asked a variety of questions about the respondents’ council tax 
circumstance as this relates to the nature of the consultation. Respondents were required to 
answer all of the questions but were given the option of ticking ‘this doesn’t apply to me’ or 
‘prefer not to say’.  
 
There were 261 responses to the consultation, with 97% of participants living in or based in 
the Vale of White Horse district.  
 
Nearly all responses were received from individuals (97%). Respondents also included one 
housing association, one agency, one organisation, and four people responding on behalf 
of somebody else (eg a carer).  
 
A variety of questions were asked about personal circumstances that would relate to the 
nature of the consultation. Responses highlighted that just over a quarter of respondents 
were currently in receipt of either full or partial council tax reduction (26%).  
 
 

 
 
 
 
Across the Vale of White Horse, there are 57,700 homes where council tax is collected and 
of these, 4,891 of them (9%), are in receipt of council tax reduction.  
 

Yes
26.4%

No
69.8%

This doesn't 
apply to me      

3.9%

Do you currently receive a council tax reduction?

Yes

No

This doesn't
apply to me

Page 20



 

6 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

For those respondents who currently receive a council tax reduction, a large proportion, 
83%, receive a partial reduction (they pay a reduced amount of council tax) while only 4% 
receive 100% full reduction (they pay no council tax).  
 
 

 
 
 
Just over a quarter of respondents will not be affected by the proposed changes to the 
scheme, with 24% of respondents in receipt of state pension, and 2% with disabilities. 
 
DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 

We asked for a variety of demographic information to help determine whether the 
individuals who took part in the survey are representative of the local population and of 
those who could be affected by the proposed changes to the scheme.  
 
The demographic data collected showed that a higher proportion of respondents identified 
as female (53%) than male (41%), while a few respondents preferred not to say (5%) and 
one person identified ‘in another way’. A small proportion of respondents (17%) specified 
that their day to day activities were limited because of a health problem or disability. 
Additional demographic data can be found in Appendix D. 
 

Pensioner
24.0%

Person with 
disabilities

1.9%This doesn’t 
apply to me

74.0%

The following groups will not be affected by any changes to the 
scheme, and will continue to receive the same level of support that 

they were entitled to when in receipt of council tax benefit

Pensioner (in receipt
of a state pension)

Person with disabilities

War Widows Pension
recipients

War Disablement
Pension recipients

This doesn’t apply to 
me

Page 21



 

7 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CTR SCHEME 

Respondents were asked to comment on the previously described proposed changes 
aimed at supporting people on low income.  
  
To find out what people think of the three proposed amendments to the scheme, we 
explained how people currently benefit from the scheme, what proposed changes we are 
looking to make and what the justification is for each of the proposed amendments. More 
information on the proposed changes was provided to respondents in the Background 
Information document, included in Appendix A. 
 
Respondents were asked how much they agree or disagree with each of the three 
proposals and were given choices ranging from strongly agree to strongly disagree, and 
don’t know. These questions were not required to be answered and respondents could skip 
these questions completely.  
 
As respondents had a choice of whether or not to answer questions, the percentages used 
in this report represent the percentage of respondents who answered the question being 
discussed. For all other questions, although respondents were required to respond, they 
were given an option of ‘this doesn’t apply to me’ or ‘prefer not to say’.  
 
The survey results show that of the three suggested changes to the Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme, the proposal to disregard Bereavement Support Payments as income when 
calculating an applicant’s council tax reduction amount received the most support (73%) 
and lowest proportion of respondents who disagree with the proposal (10%), from those 
respondents who answered this question.  
 
By contrast, the proposed changes to benefit single parents with children under five had 
60% in agreement with the proposed changes but had the highest proportion of 
respondents who disagree with the proposal (20%).  
 
When we looked at how those who are currently in receipt of some level of council tax 
reduction responded to the three proposed changes, we noticed that the level of agreement 
for the three proposed changes from this group were very similar to those who do not get 
any council tax reductions. 
 
  

Page 22



 

8 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

PROPOSED CHANGE TO BENEFIT SINGLE PARENTS WITH CHILDREN UNDER FIVE 

We are proposing to remove the 91.5 per cent limit and the band E restriction when 
calculating the council tax bill for single parents with children aged under five. This will 
mean that qualifying residents will have their reduction calculated at 100 per cent of their 
council tax bill after any deductions and based on their property’s actual council tax band. 

A fairly high proportion of respondents to this question (60%) either strongly agree or agree 
with this proposal. However, one in five respondents (20%) disagree with this proposal, and 
a notable number (14%) neither agree nor disagree with the proposal. Comments were 
made by a large number of respondents, 47, in response to being asked whether we should 
take anything into account when considering this proposed change and these will be 
discussed later in the report. 
 
 

 
 
 

25.1%

35.1%

14.3%

10.0% 9.7%

5.8%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

The proposed change is:
to remove the 91.5 per cent limit and the band E restriction 
when calculating the council tax bill for single parents with 

children aged under five

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree Disagree Strongly disagree Don't know

Page 23



 

9 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

PROPOSED CHANGE TO WIDEN THE DEFINITION OF WHO IS CONSIDERED 
DISABLED IN ORDER TO BE EXEMPT 
 
We are proposing to widen the definition of who is considered disabled, in order to be 
exempt from paying council tax (eg CTR will be calculated on 100 per cent of their council 
tax bill and their actual council tax band). 
 
A high proportion of respondents to this question (64%) also either strongly agree or agree 
with this proposal. A moderate number of respondents disagree with the proposal (15%), 
and a similar number neither agree nor disagree with the proposal (16%). There were 
comments made by 30 respondents in response to being asked whether we should take 
anything into account when considering this proposed change and these will be discussed 
later in the report. 
 
 

 
 
PROPOSED CHANGE TO BENEFIT PEOPLE WHO RECEIVE BEREAVEMENT 
SUPPORT PAYMENTS 
 
A significant proportion of respondents to this question (73%) either strongly agree or agree 
with the proposal to disregard Bereavement Support Payments as income when calculating 
an applicant’s council tax reduction amount. This proposal received the highest percentage 

24.5%

39.6%

15.5%

10.2%

4.9% 5.3%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

45.0%

1

The proposed change is:
To widen the definition of who is considered disabled, in order 

to be exempt from paying council tax

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree Disagree Strongly disagree Don't know

Page 24



 

10 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

of agreement from those who answered the questions, compared with the other two 
proposals. A small number of respondents disagree (10%), and a similar number (13%) 
neither agree nor disagree with the proposal. There were 18 respondents who gave 
comments on the proposal. 
 
 

 
 
 

KEY FINDINGS – QUALITATIVE DATA  

We asked participants to tell us, in their own words, if there is anything they think we should 
take into account when considering each of the three proposed changes to the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme.  

A range of different comments were received. The following sections will look at the most 
commonly raised comments, provide examples, and, where appropriate, feedback on our 
position on the issues raised.  

34.7%

38.0%

12.8%

6.2%

3.7%
4.5%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

1

The proposed change is:
To disregard Bereavement Support Payments as income when 

calculating an applicant’s council tax reduction amount.

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree Disagree Strongly disagree Don't know

Page 25



 

11 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

All comments have been reviewed and considered, but only those most frequently 
mentioned (raised more than two times) are being responded to in this summary report. A 
full list of comments raised can be found at Appendix E.  

Proposed change to benefit single parents with children under five 

A summary of the key themes emerging from the comments received on the proposal to 
remove the 91.5 per cent limit and the band E restriction when calculating the council tax 
bill for single parents with children aged under five can be found below. 

These comments show that the issue raised most frequently related to the proposal to 
remove the Band E restriction and base council tax reductions on the claimant’s actual 
council tax band. Frequency of this type of comment was followed closely by the feeling 
that the whole Council Tax Reduction Scheme needs redesigning. There were also 
comments about passing on costs to other residents to fund the scheme, that everyone 
should contribute towards council services and live within their means and a feeling that 
these this proposed change would be a good thing. 

Table 1: frequency of comments raised on the proposal to benefit single parents with 
children aged under five 

 

KEEP THE BAND E LIMIT / PEOPLE SHOULD DOWNSIZE HOUSE  

The highest frequency of comments related to the proposed removal of the Band E 
restriction, with the most common concerns about whether people who lived in expensive 
properties should be eligible for this part of the proposed benefit. 

Comment type Frequency 

Keep the band E limit / people should downsize house  7 

The CTRS system needs redesigning 6 

These changes will just pass costs on to other residents 4 

Everyone should contribute towards council services 4 

What you're suggesting is much fairer / a good thing 4 

This group of people don't deserve a discount / live within your means 4 

Changes should only be for those with children under 3 3 

Scheme should be means tested 3 

Should encourage people to work (these changes do not) 3 

Carry out checks to prevent fraud 3 

Your wording to explain the changes is unclear 2 

Single parents should stay / children benefit if mother at home 2 

Not clear what changes will mean in practice 2 

Single parents punished for going back to work 2 

Current entitlements are enough to cover needs 2 

What about residents in the 'middle'? 1 

Pensioners not taken into account 1 

Should be limited to number of children a person has 1 

Offer of financial planning support should be made available 1 

Page 26



 

12 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

Think the band E limit should still be used as support should be given to 
those most in need (ID126881161) 

If you live in an expensive property, you should downsize (ID 126990322) 

… Are you really suggesting that very high value properties would be exempt?  
(ID 126845133) 

Feedback from the finance team:  
This is something that councillors will consider. The cost of this provision to the district 
council at the time this report is being prepared is estimated to be around £42 per annum. 

 
THE CTRS SYSTEM NEEDS REDESIGNING 

There were many views expressed where respondents thought that the CTRS system 
needs redesigning as many felt it was unfair, it might invite abuses of the current system 
and that it would be more useful to make childcare more affordable. 

My child’s disabled and we are on low income. We have to pay the full tax. I think the 
system needs to be redesigned completely, it’s shamefully unfair. (ID 126832814) 

This is a short term fix - it would be more useful to the many people (sic) to make 
childcare more affordable (ID 126881280) 

One respondent believes the current system doesn’t go far enough: 

I think you should go further than for single parents with children under 5. Your 
proposal assumes child care is the main financial burden for single parents - there 
are …Go further and help more! (ID 127105648) 

By contrast, another respondent felt that this extra support isn’t needed by this group of 
people who already receive other benefits: 

…all the single parents with under 5s that I know, can afford decent clothes, get 
given council houses, have cars, can afford a nice Christmas, big tvs, mobile 
phones…all whilst on benefits and not working. And now you are saying they 
shouldn’t pay any council tax… I work 40 hours a week, am a single parent (I do get 
a 25% reduction as am only adult) and am struggling but get no help…the system is 
wrong. (ID 127091304) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
When council tax reduction became the responsibility of the council, we decided to keep the 
scheme as close to the national Council Tax Benefit scheme as possible for continuity and 
to ensure that no one lost out. This was the approach of the majority of councils at the time 
and continues to be so. Although we have the ability to amend the working age scheme to 
an extent, all alternative schemes have disadvantages as well as advantages, which need 
to be considered.     

 

 

 

 

Page 27



 

13 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

THESE CHANGES WILL JUST PASS COSTS ON TO OTHER RESIDENTS 

Respondents expressed the view that the proposed change would just pass on costs to 
other residents. In practice the cost of this proposed change to the scheme would not 
directly affect residents.  

This is all well & good but you are then passing these extra costs on to the residents 
who are paying the full costs. (ID 126831734) 

If lowering the bills for this groups of people means that bills increase for other 
people I strongly disagree with this proposal. (ID 127743314) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
There is a cost to these changes, currently estimated at £46,000 per annum overall (with 
£4,000 being covered by the district council). When set against annual council tax 
collections of £97,370,689 this is a relatively small sum.  

 

EVERYONE SHOULD CONTRIBUTE TOWARDS COUNCIL SERVICES 

There were comments expressed that everyone should be contributing to local services and 
that this group of people should live within their means.  

Everyone should pay something. (ID 126861028) 

I support the idea that everyone contributes towards Council Services… Countless 
people have to make this decision - to cut their cloth to suit their circumstances.  
(ID 126856615) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
The council tax reduction scheme is means tested and single parents with children aged 
under five years old will have to contribute towards the council tax if their financial 
circumstances improve. Full help will only be given to those applicants on the lowest 
income, an amount determined by Government. 

 

WHAT YOU'RE SUGGESTING IS MUCH FAIRER / A GOOD THING 

In contrast to some of the other more disapproving comments to this proposal, four 
respondents expressed positive views about the proposed change, saying that it was much 
fairer.  

I think this is much fairer especially for single parents with children under the 
age of 5 as food and utility bills are always increasing. (ID 126863299) 

Anything that helps young families has to be a good thing. (ID 127099371) 

I firmly believe that persons (particularly women with children under 5 who are 
working or not working) deserve. Even if this means I should pay more tax that’s fine 
with me. (ID 127744375) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
The positive comments are noted and will be considered by councillors when reviewing the 
scheme. 

Page 28



 

14 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

THIS GROUP OF PEOPLE DON'T DESERVE A DISCOUNT / LIVE WITHIN YOUR 
MEANS 

There were some strong points made about whether the extra help is deserved or needed. 

Your survey does NOT take pensioners into account, and an increasing number are 
suffering. Many of the people you are endeavouring to assist don’t deserve a 
discount. (ID 126832610) 

Live within your means, don’t expect an easy ride… (ID 127744787) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
Pensioners on the lowest income already receive up to 100% help with their council tax. 
Full help with the council tax will only be given to those on the lowest income, an amount 
determined by Government. 

 

CHANGES SHOULD ONLY BE FOR THOSE WITH CHILDREN UNDER 3 

There were a few who thought that if the proposed change were to go ahead, the age limit 
should be for children aged under three, rather than aged under five.  

Since single parents with children between age 3 and 5 do qualify for free childcare 
then would it not be reasonable to confine this change to those with children under 
3… (ID 126869747) 

… If some allowance is to be made it should be to those with children under 3 years 
who do not have access to free childcare. (ID 127723491) 

Feedback from the finance team:  
This will be something that councillors will consider, but it should be noted that the 
Government does not expect single parents on Income Support with children aged under 
five to work. Those on Universal Credit are not expected to work enough hours to make it 
possible to live independently of benefits. 

 

SCHEME SHOULD BE MEANS TESTED 

A few comments were also made about whether the scheme should be means tested. 

…how will this be seen by those working on low wages will work be seen to be 
worthwhile, will this have a sliding scale, means tested… (ID 126849458) 

Is this means tested? (ID 126845133) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
The Council Tax Reduction Scheme is means tested. 

 

SHOULD ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO WORK (THESE CHANGES DO NOT) 

Further comments questioned whether the proposed change would discourage people to 
find work, and how it might be seen by those people who are working on low wages. 

Page 29



 

15 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

Perhaps keep the 91.5 for non -working single parents and use the 100% for those 
working. Try and encourage people to work? (ID 127101113) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
The changes are for a period until the youngest child is in full-time education. Those without 
children in full-time education do not have the restraints of finding and paying for full-time 
childcare, which can limit the type of jobs available to lone parents. The change reflects 
that, for many in this group, finding work will be difficult.     

 

CARRY OUT CHECKS TO PREVENT FRAUD 

Suggestions were made of the importance of ensuring that any potential fraud could be 
spotted through checks on claimants. 

There should be occasional checks to make sure single parents ‘are’ single parents! 
(ID 127180609) 

I feel that if this amount of reduction is being given more spot checks for benefit 
fraud will have to be carried out. (ID 127245049) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
We have a dedicated and robust counter fraud investigations team which makes checks on 
those who claim council tax discounts, including claims made under the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme. Data matching is undertaken and, along with information received from 
other intelligence sources, we robustly pursue anyone we believe is claiming discounts 
illegally and sanction them accordingly. 

 

Proposed change to widen the definition of who is considered disabled 
in order to be exempt 

Below is a summary of the key themes emerging from comments on the proposal to widen 
the definition of who is considered disabled, in order to be exempt from paying council tax 
(eg CTR will be calculated on 100 per cent of their council tax and their actual council tax 
band). 

The most frequent comment made was about whether a person’s disability affects their 
ability to work, and therefore their ability, and responsibility, to pay council tax. Comments 
were also expressed about keeping the Band E limit, verifying a person’s disability, having 
a duty of care towards those less able and highlighting that some disabilities are not visible. 

Table 2: frequency of comments raised on the proposal to widen the definition of who is 
considered disabled in order to be exempt 

Comment type Frequency 

Should be dependent on how disability affects employability 5 

Your wording to explain the changes is unclear 3 

We have a duty of care to those less able 3 

Keep the Band E limit 3 

Those on disability should be tested/verified 3 

Page 30



 

16 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

 

SHOULD BE DEPENDENT ON HOW DISABILITY AFFECTS EMPLOYABILITY  

The highest number of comments made on this proposal were around the definition of 
disability, whether a person’s disability affects their ability work, and if they should therefore 
be entitled to this benefit at all if they are able to work. 

There should be one definition of ‘disabled’ for all assistance payments and one 
properly linked to the ability to earn or otherwise. (ID 126850875) 

You do not state the degree of disability. I would agree if this exemption is confined 
to those with a ‘severe disability’ rating. Otherwise I disagree... (ID 127723491) 

There are so many different types of disability…I would strongly agree to this 
proposal if moderately disabled people are included as well as the severely disabled. 
(ID 127743314) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
For those who are entitled to the Limited Capability for Work and Limited Capability for 
Work Related Activity in their Universal Credit, the Department for Work and Pensions will 
already have assessed how their disability affects their ability to work before awarding 
these components.  
 
Disability Living Allowance, Personal Independence Payments and Armed Forces 
Independence Payments are only paid to those considered in the greatest need to help 
them take part in everyday life and is awarded only after a medical assessment.  

 

YOUR WORDING TO EXPLAIN THE CHANGES IS UNCLEAR 

Although the question on this proposal was answered by 94% of overall survey participants, 
a few found the wording used to explain the proposed changes unclear and therefore felt 
unable to answer.  

I am unclear from the explanation as to who would qualify for disability under the 
proposed changes. I am therefore unable to comment. (ID 126869747) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
We explained the proposed changes as clearly as possible and for consistency based 
some of the background information on materials produced by other councils who are doing 
a similar consultation on council tax reduction schemes. We encouraged people to get in 

Remember invisible / hidden disabilities 3 

Widen definition further, this doesn't go far enough 2 

Remove Band E restriction 1 

The CTRS system needs redesigning 1 

Should only apply to Band A-C 1 

Benefits should not go to self-imposed disabilities eg obesity 1 

Should only apply to 'severe disability' 1 

Don't expect allowance with disability  1 

What you're suggesting sounds broadly beneficial 1 

Not clear what this will mean in practice 1 

Page 31



 

17 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

touch with us if they had any questions about the survey and supplied a phone number and 
email address to contact us. We will take this into account when we prepare future 
consultations.  

 

WE HAVE A DUTY OF CARE TO THOSE LESS ABLE 

On a positive note, there were comments saying that we have a duty of care to help those 
less able.  

We have a duty of care to those who are less able (ID 126851598) 

Disabled people cannot earn money - or enough of it to pay council tax. (ID 
128103512) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
The positive comments are noted and will be considered by councillors when reviewing the 
scheme. 

 

KEEP THE BAND E LIMIT 

As with earlier comments to restrict the Band E limit on the proposed change to benefit 
single people with children under five, there was also a feeling that the Band E limit should 
be kept for those with a disability.  

I disagree with the idea of helping those in band F of higher. These are the most 
expensive properties. If the Band E restriction were to be retained I would agree with 
the policy. (ID 126856615) 

Agree in general but not with removal of the higher tax band limits as needs to be 
concentrated on those in greatest need. (ID 126881161) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
This will be something that councillors will consider, but at the time of preparing this report 
there are no disabled council tax reduction scheme claimants in bands F to H.  

 

THOSE ON DISABILITY SHOULD BE TESTED/VERIFIED 

Some comments suggest that those in receipt of disability benefit should be verified 
(medically) to determine whether the claimants are genuine.  

There should be tactful checks to ensure the disability of the person is genuine. (ID 
127180609) 

Those on disability benefit should be tested and verified by doctors… (ID 
126857609) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
Before extending the criteria for this exemption, those who would benefit will have gone 
through a medical examination administered by the Department for Work and Pensions. 

 

Page 32



 

18 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

REMEMBER INVISIBLE / HIDDEN DISABILITIES 

A few comments were made that point out hidden or invisible disabilities, ie those where the 
person could have a visibly hidden condition, should be considered.  

Don’t forget invisible disabilities! (ID 127105648) 

There are so many different types of disability...Not all disabled people use a 
wheelchair…I would strongly agree to this proposal if moderately disabled people 
are included as well as the severely disabled. (ID 127743314) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
The extension of the exemption is based on assessments made for Department for Work 
and Pensions benefits, all of which have provision to take mental health issues as well as 
physical disabilities into account.  

 

Proposed change to benefit people who receive Bereavement Support 
Payments 

A summary of the key themes emerging from comments on the proposal to disregard 
Bereavement Support Payments as income when calculating an applicant’s CTR can be 
found below. 

There were a relatively low number of comments received to this proposal. As such, we 
have responded to the comments that were raised more than once. The most frequent 
comment concerned the view that the proposed change is only acceptable if it is a 
temporary benefit and time limited. This proposal had the highest level of agreement to the 
change and the lowest level of disagreement, compared with the other two proposals. 
There were also views that said the suggested change seems fairer, but by contrast others 
felt the change didn’t make sense or seem fair.  

Table 3: frequency of comments raised on the proposal to benefit people who receive 
Bereavement Support Payments 

 

Comment type Frequency 

Okay as temporary benefit 3 

What you're suggesting seems much fairer / agree with it  2 

Reduction doesn't make sense / doesn't seem fair  2 

Should only apply if parent has young children  2 

Should plan for this eventuality / have life insurance  2 

Bereaved need as much support as they can get 1 

Not clear what the impact will be 1 

Should disregard the payment (like Government) 1 

These changes will just pass costs on to other residents 1 

Carry out checks to prevent fraud 1 

Page 33



 

19 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

OKAY AS TEMPORARY BENEFIT 

This proposal received positive support from around three quarters of those who answered 
this question, however the highest number of comments suggested limiting the amount of 
time that a bereaved person would be entitled to this benefit.  

… should be time limited (ID 126878858) 

The loss of a contributing partner can cause cash flow problems even in affluent 
homes. Providing this BSP is time limited. I agree with the change proposed… (ID 
127723491) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
Bereavement Support Allowance is a benefit which is paid for a maximum of 18 months, so 
the extra help is time limited. 

 

WHAT YOU'RE SUGGESTING SEEMS MUCH FAIRER / AGREE WITH IT 

This seems a much fairer and supportive proposal. (ID 126975003) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
The positive comments are noted and will be considered by councillors when reviewing the 
scheme. 

 

REDUCTION DOESN'T MAKE SENSE / DOESN'T SEEM FAIR 

Why would you get a reduction? Doesn’t take sense. (ID 127103876) 

There are many people who live alone with one income and will never get any 
additional government payments, have worked all their adult life and contributed to 
the taxes…No easy way to keep a fair balance. (ID 128581722) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
Those who suffer bereavement suffer not only emotional distress, but often financial 
dislocation when a partner dies, especially if the deceased partner is the main breadwinner.  
 
Bereavement Support Payments are only available to those people whose deceased 
partner has contributed a certain level of National Insurance payments due to employment, 
so will have made contributions towards this benefit.  

 

SHOULD ONLY APPLY IF PARENT HAS YOUNG CHILDREN 

If someone dies and they are a parent to young children I agree to this proposal… 
(ID 127743314) 

I assume this payment is for under 18s (ID 128201047) 

Feedback from the finance team: 
Bereavement Support Payment has higher levels of support for widows/widowers with 
children under age 18, so exempting this benefit will help those with young children more. 
 

Page 34



 

20 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

Bereavement Support Payment is only paid to someone whose deceased partner has 
contributed a certain level of National Insurance payments due to employment, so will have 
made contributions towards this benefit; this is not an unfunded benefit paid to all 
widows/widowers.   

 

SHOULD PLAN FOR THIS EVENTUALITY / HAVE LIFE INSURANCE 

Others should have life insurance policies, etc? (ID 127743314) 

Everyone should plan for these eventualities as sad as they are, it is the one 
certainty we all have to face. (ID 127744787) 

 

Feedback from the finance team: 
Government has long accepted that there is a need to help those who are recently 
bereaved and support them through a difficult time emotionally and financially. 
Bereavement Support Allowance is the latest example of this support, which is time limited 
to the period of greatest need and will be reflected in our decision to not take Bereavement 
Support Payments into account when calculating the widow/widower’s council tax 
reduction.   

 

 

 

  

Page 35



 

21 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

HOW WE HAVE USED RESULTS OF THE CONSULTATION 

Thank you to everyone that has participated in the consultation.  

This report shows the outcome of the public consultation on three proposed amendments to 
the scheme which we believe would benefit some people of working age who receive a 
reduction in their council tax payments. By law, we are required to have a scheme to help 
people on low incomes pay their council tax. 
 
The consultation highlighted that there is overall support for the three proposed changes to 
the scheme. There were a variety of considerations, and although only the most frequently 
mentioned comments are explored further in this report, all comments received are taken 
into consideration and included in Appendix E. 

A summary of the findings is collated in this report and being presented to our scrutiny 
committee and Cabinet; we currently expect this to happen in January 2020. The original 
dates for these meetings were postponed due to Purdah – the pre-election publicity 
restrictions in the lead up to the December 2019 general election. Following any further 
comments and final approval, we will publish the updated Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
on our website www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ctrs. The changes will come into effect from 1 
April 2020.  

 
FURTHER INFORMATION 

For information about the consultation or the results presented in this report, please 
contact: 
 
Consultation and Community Engagement Team 
South Oxfordshire/ Vale of White Horse District Council 
01235 422125 
haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
 
To enquire about our work on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme, please contact the 
Revenues and Benefits team: 
 
Revenues and Benefits Team 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
01235 422491 
james.connolly@southandvale.gov.uk 

  

Page 36



 

22 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

APPENDIX A – BACKGROUND TO THE CONSULTATION 

A copy of the Background Information document is below. It was available as a link from 
our online survey and website and sent as a paper copy to those who opted to receive 
postal notifications.  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

In April 2013, the national scheme to help people on low incomes pay their council tax was 
abolished and replaced by a new scheme called Council Tax Reduction (CTR).  

The Government continued to fund the new scheme, however local authorities can choose 
how it operates in their area. 
 
Since April 2014, we have been operating a slightly revised scheme for working age 
applicants.  The maximum amount of reduction they can receive is restricted to 91.5 per 
cent of their council tax bill. The reason for this limit was to ensure everyone contributes to 
council services and also to act as an incentive to encourage people to look for work.  

This restriction does not apply to those who are considered disabled, war pensioners or 
widows; they are able to claim up to 100 per cent off their council tax bill. 

You can read more about the CTR scheme on our website www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ctrs. 

What’s happening now? 
We are proposing to make three amendments to the scheme that will operate from April 
2020. 
 
In summary, we are proposing changes which we believe will: 
 
1. provide greater support for single parents with children under five years old; 
2. widen the definition of who is considered disabled in order to be exempt from the current 
restrictions; 
3. benefit people who receive Bereavement Support Payments. 

Why are we proposing changes?  
Council tax collection data and independent reports indicate that the current minimum 
charge of 8.5 per cent can cause hardship for a number of residents, especially those who 
are single parents of working age with children aged under five. The Government does not 
expect those in this category to have to find work and we are committed to reducing any 
additional potential hardship that this minimum charge could bring them and their children. 
 
Following the introduction of Universal Credit (UC), we are also proposing two further 
changes to CTR which take account of the impact that some UC provisions have had on 
those who are considered disabled, and those in receipt of Bereavement Support 
Payments. 

We are now consulting on proposals for changes to our Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 
2020/21 and asks for your views to help inform our final decision. 

Page 37



 

23 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

Proposed changes to benefit single parents with children under five 

Currently, single parents with children aged under five have their CTR calculated up to a 
maximum of 91.5 per cent and have their CTR calculated to a maximum of band E if they 
live in a higher banded property. 

What we are proposing: 
To remove the 91.5 per cent limit and the band E restriction when calculating the council 
tax bill for single parents with children aged under five.  This will mean that qualifying 
residents will have their reduction calculated at 100 per cent of their council tax bill after any 
deductions and based on their property’s actual council tax band. 

The justification for the change: 
The current system was designed to ensure everyone contributes fairly to council services 
and to encourage people to return to work. However, we recognise that for single parents 
with children aged under five, it can be more difficult to find childcare if their children are not 
in full-time education. 
  
In particular, single parents with children aged under three are not entitled to the free 
childcare offered by the Government. Also, the Department for Work and Pensions does 
not expect single parents on Income Support with children aged under five to work, and 
those on Universal Credit are not expected to work enough hours to make it possible to live 
independently of benefits. More information can be found on the council tax page of the 
Government website www.gov.uk/council-tax/who-has-to-pay. 

Proposed changes to widen the definition of who is considered disabled 
in order to be exempt 
Currently, those considered disabled are exempt from the calculation of their CTR to a 
maximum of 91.5 per cent and calculated to a maximum of band E if they live in a higher 
banded property.  

What we are proposing: 
To widen the definition of who is considered disabled, in order to be exempt from paying 
council tax (eg CTR will be calculated on 100 per cent of their council tax bill and their 
actual council tax band). 

The justification for the change: 
When we made changes to the 2014 scheme, we decided that those considered disabled 
would be exempt from any negative changes to the scheme due to their difficulty in finding 
work.  

However, this exemption was based on premiums and benefits which have since been 
replaced by Universal Credit.  There are also certain elements within Universal Credit which 
perform the same function as disability premiums. These are the limited capability for work 
element (no longer available to new applicants), and the limited capability for work related 
activity, which will also exempt applicants. 
  
The Government recently announced a scheme to compensate people who have lost their 
entitlement to a severe disability premium after moving from legacy benefits to Universal 
Credit. Applicants who are entitled to this payment will also be exempt. 

Page 38



 

24 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

  
Although the elements in Universal Credit do not completely overlap with the previous 
benefits and premiums, we believe this proposal is the best trade-off between helping 
applicants who are considered disabled for CTR purposes and ensuring the scheme is 
efficient to administer. 

Proposed changes to benefit people who receive Bereavement Support 
Payments 

Currently, Bereavement Support Payment is counted as income when calculating an 
applicant’s CTR. 

What we are proposing: 
To disregard Bereavement Support Payments as income when calculating an applicant’s 
council tax reduction amount. 
  
The justification for the change: 
Bereavement Support Payment (BSP) is a relatively new social security benefit, introduced 
in April 2017. Unlike previous benefits to support bereavement, BSP is not counted as 
income and capital in means tested benefits. 
  
CTR, although means tested, is not a social security benefit and is counted as income and 
capital. The proposed change is to bring our CTR scheme into line with other means tested 
schemes and to minimise distress to applicants who have lost their partners.  

  

Page 39



 

25 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

APPENDIX B – CONSULTATION COMMUNICATION  

A copy of the email notification sent out to consultees is below. The text was adapted for 
the letter sent to those who opted to receive postal notifications. 
 
Subject: Your comments are invited on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2020/21 
Consultation  
 
Dear [NAME] 
 
Vale of White Horse District Council is asking residents and local organisations for 
comments on some proposed changes to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme from April 
2020. 
 
We would like to know what you think of three proposed amendments to the scheme which 
we believe would benefit some people of working age who receive a reduction in their 
council tax payments. You can find out more about the proposed changes in the 
background information document using this link.  
 
By law, we are required to have a scheme to help people on low income pay their council 
tax. 
 
To give your views on our proposed changes please complete the online survey here 
[SURVEYLINK] by 5pm on Wednesday 9 October 2019.  
 
NOTE: This link is uniquely tied to this survey and your email address. Please do not 
forward this message. 
 
We will not ask for your name or any contact details. Your response is linked to your email 
address but all raw data will be deleted after a summary consultation report is 
published. You also do not have to answer any questions that you do not want to.  
 
Once the consultation has closed, we will collate and present the responses to our scrutiny 
committee; we currently expect this to happen in November. Subject to approval, we will 
then publish full details of the updated scheme in early 2020, with the changes coming into 
effect from 1 April 2020. 
 
Once approved, we will publish the consultation summary report on our website and delete 
the raw data.  
 
If you have any questions about this survey or require it in an alternative format, please 
email haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk or call 01235 422425. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Cllr Andy Crawford 
Cabinet Member for Finance 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
 

 

Page 40



 

26 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

If you do not wish to receive further emails from us, please click the link below, and you will 
be removed from our consultation mailing list. Please note, we may still need to contact you 
for certain consultations if we have a legal obligation to do so.  [OPTOUT] 
 
 
  

Page 41



 

27 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

APPENDIX C – SURVEY  

A copy of the paper comment form is below; it is based on the online survey. 

Comment from for the Council Tax Reduction Scheme: 
consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  

Introduction  

We are asking for comments on some proposed changes to the Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme from April 2020. We would like to know what you think of three amendments to the 
scheme which we believe would benefit some people of working age who receive a 
reduction in their council tax payments. By law, we are required to have a scheme to help 
people on low incomes pay their council tax. 
  
This survey will ask you a few questions to find out your views on the proposed changes. 
You can find out more in the background information document, available to view on our 
website, www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ctrs.  

 
Please note the deadline for completing this survey is 5pm on Wednesday 9 October 
2019. 
 
How to comment 

Comments can be made by: 

 completing this comment form and posting or emailing it back to us 
(addresses below) 

 emailing haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk  

 writing to Vale of White Horse District Council, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton 
Park, Milton, OX14 4SB 

 using our online comment form, which is available here: 
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/ValeCTRS/ 

 

What happens next? 
Once the consultation has closed, we will collate and present the responses to our scrutiny 
committee; we currently expect this to happen in November.  Subject to approval, we will 
then publish full details of the updated scheme in early 2020, with the changes coming into 
effect from 1 April 2020. Once approved, we will publish the consultation summary report 
on our website www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ctrs and delete the raw data. 
 
If you have any queries about this survey or require it in an alternative format (for example 
large print, Braille, audio, email, easy to read and alternative languages), please email 
haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk or call 01235 422425. 
  

Page 42



 

28 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

We will not ask for your name or any contact details. You also do not have to answer any 
questions that you do not want to. Any personal information supplied to the council within 
your comments that could identify you will not be published in the summary report. Further 
information on data protection is available in our privacy statement on our website, 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/about-us/have-your-say.  

A. General  

1. Are you responding to this survey on your own behalf or on behalf of somebody 
else?  

   On my own behalf   (Please go to question 3) 

   On behalf of somebody else (eg a carer) 

   On behalf of an agency, organisation or council        

 

2. Are you responding as / on behalf of a:  

   Agency 

   Business 

   Carer 

   Council 

   Housing Association 

   Landlord 

   Organisation 

   Other (please specify): 
 

 

Unless you are a carer, please give us the name of who you are representing:   

  

 
  

When responding to the remaining questions, please answer on behalf of who you 
are representing, even if the question refers to 'you'. 

Page 43



 

29 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

3. Do you live in or are based in the Vale of White Horse district?  

   Yes 

   No 

 

B. Council Tax: your current status  

4. Do you currently receive a council tax reduction?  

   Yes 

   No 

 This doesn’t apply to me 

5. If you answered yes to the previous questions, please tell us the level of council 
tax reduction you receive.  

   100 per cent full reduction (i.e. you pay no council tax) 

   Partial reduction (i.e. you pay a reduced amount of council tax) 

 This doesn’t apply to me 

6. The following groups will not be affected by any changes to the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme in the Vale of White Horse, and will continue to receive the same 
level of support that they were entitled to when in receipt of council tax benefit. 
Please indicate if you belong to any of these groups (tick one box only) 

   Pensioner (in receipt of a state pension) 

   Person with disabilities (in receipt of any of the benefits listed below) 

   War Widows Pension recipients 

   War Disablement Pension recipients 

   This doesn’t apply to me 

  

Page 44



 

30 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

People with disabilities are defined as persons in receipt of the following: 
•           Disability Premium 
•           Enhanced Disability Premium 
•           Severe Disability Premium 
•           Disability Premium for Dependents 
•           Enhanced Disability Premium for Dependents 
•           Disabled Earnings Disregard 
•           CT Disability Reduction 
•           Employment Support Allowance (any rate) 

 

C. Proposed changes to benefit single parents with 
children under five  

Currently, single parents with children aged under five have their CTR calculated up to a 
maximum of 91.5 per cent and have their CTR calculated to a maximum of band E if they 
live in a higher banded property. 
 
What we are proposing: 
To remove the 91.5 per cent limit and the band E restriction when calculating the council 
tax bill for single parents with children under age five.  This will mean that qualifying 
residents will have their reduction calculated at 100 per cent of their council tax bill after any 
deductions and based on their property’s actual council tax band. 

The justification for the change: 
The current system was designed to ensure everyone contributes fairly to council services 
and to encourage people to return to work. However, we recognise that for single parents 
with children aged under 5, it can be more difficult to find childcare if their children are not in 
full-time education. 
 
In particular, single parents with children aged under three are not entitled to the free 
childcare offered by the Government. Also, the Department for Work and Pensions does 
not expect single parents on Income Support with children aged under five to work, and 
those on Universal Credit are not expected to work enough hours to make it possible to live 
independently of benefits. More information can be found on the council tax page of the 
Government website www.gov.uk/council-tax/who-has-to-pay. 

7. The proposed change is:  

To remove the 91.5 per cent limit and the band E restriction when calculating the 
council tax bill for single parents with children under age five.  This will mean that 
qualifying residents will have their reduction calculated at 100 per cent of their 
council tax bill after any deductions and based on their property’s actual council tax 
band. 

Page 45



 

31 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

How much do you agree or disagree with this proposal?  

   Strongly agree 

   Agree 

   Neither agree nor disagree 

   Disagree 

   Strongly disagree 

   Don't know 

 

If there is anything that you think we should take into account when considering this 
proposed change please use the space below to tell us:   

  
 

 

 

 
 

D. Proposed changes to widen the definition of who is 
considered disabled in order to be exempt  

Currently, those considered disabled are exempt from the calculation of their CTR to a 
maximum of 91.5 per cent and calculated to a maximum of band E if they live in a higher 
banded property. 
  
What we are proposing: 
To widen the definition of who is considered disabled, in order to be exempt from paying 
council tax (eg CTR will be calculated on 100 per cent of their council tax bill and their 
actual council tax band). 
  
The justification for the change: 
When we made changes to the 2014 scheme, we decided that those considered disabled 
would be exempt from any negative changes to the scheme due to their difficulty in finding 
work. 
  
However, this exemption was based on premiums and benefits which have since been 
replaced by Universal Credit.  There are also certain elements within Universal Credit which 
perform the same function as disability premiums. These are the limited capability for work 

Page 46



 

32 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

element (no longer available to new applicants), and the limited capability for work related 
activity, which will also exempt applicants. 
  
The Government recently announced a scheme to compensate people who have lost their 
entitlement to a severe disability premium after moving from legacy benefits to Universal 
Credit. Applicants who are entitled to this payment will also be exempt. 
  
Although the elements in Universal Credit do not completely overlap with the previous 
benefits and premiums, we believe this proposal is the best trade-off between helping 
applicants who are considered disabled for CTR purposes and ensuring the scheme is 
efficient to administer. 

8. The proposed change is:  
To widen the definition of who is considered disabled, in order to be exempt from 
paying council tax (eg CTR will be calculated on 100 per cent of their council tax bill 
and their actual council tax band).  

How much do you agree or disagree with this proposal?  

   Strongly agree 

   Agree 

   Neither agree nor disagree 

   Disagree 

   Strongly disagree 

   Don't know 

 

If there is anything that you think we should take into account when considering this 
proposed change please use the space below to tell us:   

  

 

 

  

 

E. Proposed changes to benefit people who receive 
Bereavement Support Payments  

Page 47



 

33 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

Currently, Bereavement Support Payment is counted as income when calculating an 
applicant’s CTR. 
 
What we are proposing: 
To disregard Bereavement Support Payments as income when calculating an applicant’s 
council tax reduction amount. 
  
The justification for the change: 
Bereavement Support Payment (BSP) is a relatively new social security benefit, introduced 
in April 2017. Unlike previous benefits to support bereavement, BSP is not counted as 
income and capital in means tested benefits. 
  
CTR, although means tested, is not a social security benefit and is counted as income and 
capital. The proposed change is to bring our CTR scheme into line with other means tested 
schemes and to minimise distress to applicants who have lost their partners. 

9. The proposed change is:  
To disregard Bereavement Support Payments as income when calculating an 
applicant’s council tax reduction amount.  

How much do you agree or disagree with this proposal?  

   Strongly agree 

   Agree 

   Neither agree nor disagree 

   Disagree 

   Strongly disagree 

   Don't know 

 

If there is anything that you think we should take into account when considering this 
proposed change please use the space below to tell us:   

  
 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 48



 

34 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

NOTE: If you are responding to this survey on behalf of an agency, 
organisation or council please go straight to section H. 

 

F. About you   

10. Which of the following best describes who lives in your household? Tick all that 
apply. 

Dependent children are those aged under age 16 living with at least one parent, or 
aged 16 to 18 in full-time education, excluding all children who have a spouse, 
partner or child living in the household.  

    One person only 

    Two or more unrelated adults 

    Married/co-habiting couple 

    Lone parent 

    With dependent children 

    With non-dependent children 

    With no children 

    Two or more families 

    Prefer not to say 

   
 Other (please specify): 

 
 

 

G. Equalities  

We are committed to making sure that residents have equal access to services. Please 
help us to keep track of how successfully we are achieving this by ticking the appropriate 
boxes below. All information is confidential and will only be used to help us monitor whether 
views differ across the community. 

Page 49



 

35 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

11. Which of the following describes how you think of yourself?  

   Male 

   Female 

   In another way 

   Prefer not to say 

 

12. How old are you?  

   16-24 

   25-34 

   35-44 

   45-54 

  55-64 

  65+ 

  Prefer not to say 

  

13. Are your day to day activities limited because of a health problem or disability 
which has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or more? (please include problems 
related to old age)  

   Yes 

   No 

   Prefer not to say 

   

14. What is your ethnic group?  

  White 

   White English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern Irish, British 

  Irish 

Page 50



 

36 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

  Gypsy or Irish Traveller 

  Any other White background 

   Black or Black British 

  Caribbean 

  African 

  Any other Black background 

    Mixed or multiple ethnic groups 

  White & Black Caribbean 

  White & Black African 

  White & Asian 

  Any other mixed background 

    Asian or Asian British 

  Indian 

  Pakistani 

  Bangladeshi 

  Chinese 

  Any other Asian background 

   Prefer not to say 

  
 Other ethnic group (please specify): 

 

 
 

 

 

H. How did you find out about this consultation?  

15. Please tell us how you found out about this consultation. Tick all that apply.  

   Twitter 

Page 51



 

37 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

   Facebook 

   Email 

   Letter 

   Read it in the newspaper 

   Radio / TV 

   Our website 

   Another website 

   Word of mouth 

   Other (please specify): 
 

 

Thank you for your comments. 

  

Page 52



 

38 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

APPENDIX D – DEMOGRAPHIC DATA 

Below is all the demographic data collected in the consultation. 

 

 
 
Other (please specify): 
Two Adults & one ill elderly parent 
One adult working, one adult full time carer for pensioner 
this is not an appropriate question 
and a dependent adult too 
Mum and uncle 
occasional foster children 
Agency 
n/a 
 
 
 
 

21.3%

3.3%

56.3%

7.9%

29.2%

8.3% 7.1%

0.0%

4.2% 3.8%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

1

Which of the following best describes who lives in your household?
Tick all that apply

One person only Two or more unrelated adults Married/co-habiting couple

Lone parent With dependent children With non-dependent children

With no children Two or more families Prefer not to say

Other (please specify):

Page 53



 

39 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

 

 

 

 

Male
41%

Female
53%

In 
another 

way
1%

Prefer 
not to 

say
5%

Which of the following describes how you 
think of yourself?

Male Female In another way Prefer not to say

0.9%

8.5%

17.9%
19.6%

17.9%

28.9%

6.4%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

1

How old are you?

16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65+ Prefer not to say

Page 54



 

40 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

 

Yes
17%

No
77%

Prefer 
not to 

say
6%

Are your day to day activities limited because of a health 
problem or disability which has lasted or is expected to 

last 12 months or more? 
(please include problems related to old age)

Yes No Prefer not to say

Page 55



 

41 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

 
 

 
Other ethnic group (please specify): 
Mixed European 
English  
British-Mairi 
this is not an appropriate question 
 
  

90.3%

0.4% 0.0% 0.4%

6.8%
2.1%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

White Black or Black
British

Mixed or
multiple ethnic

groups

Asian or Asian
British

Prefer not to
say

Other ethnic
group (please

specify):

What is your ethnic group?

Page 56



 

42 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

We also asked respondents to tell us how they heard about the consultation, to help us plan 
how we contact people and ensure that we offer a wide variety of ways to get involved. 

 

 

Other (please specify): 
Volunteer Scheme 
vwhdc invited my input, as they have done for some years 
In Focus (councillor newsletter) 
 
 
  

5.3%

24.0%

54.7%

10.2%

0.0% 0.0%

5.3%

0.0% 0.4%
1.3%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

Please tell us how you found out about this consultation. 
Tick all that apply.

Page 57



 

43 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

APPENDIX E – LIST OF ALL COMMENTS RECEIVED  

Below are the comments received to the question:  
If there is anything that you think we should take into account when considering this 
proposed change please use the space below to tell us 
 
Proposed change: 
To remove the 91.5 per cent limit and the band E restriction when calculating the council 
tax bill for single parents with children under age five.  This will mean that qualifying 
residents will have their reduction calculated at 100 per cent of their council tax bill after any 
deductions and based on their property’s actual council tax band. 
 

Response ID Comments 

126831734 
This is all well & good but you are then passing these extra costs on to the residents who 
are paying the full costs. 

126832814 
My child s disabled and we are on low income. We have to pay the full tax. I think the 
system needs to be redesigned completely, it’s shamefully unfair. 

126847623 

Your wording is quite unclear. When you say ‘calculated up to a maximum of 91.5 per 
cent’ I assumed that meant that they could have 100% relief from Council Tax. But the 
next phrase ‘This will mean that qualifying residents will have their reduction calculated at 
100 per cent of their council tax bill after any deductions and based on their property’s 
actual council tax band.’ implies something different - that the reduction was previously 
calculated ON 91.5% of the tax that they would have been liable for, and that now it 
would be calculated on 100%. Now that could mean that there is the option of 100% 
reduction, but I can’t tell that without knowing the bands of reduction possible.  I am 
answer assuming that previously no one could get 100% relief from Council Tax and no 
you are proposing that single parents with children under 5 would be able to.  I am also 
assuming that this is only under certain circumstances and not as a general rule (there 
may be people with large financial assets for whom this would not be appropriate).  (As an 
aside, I’m baffled by the stated fact that ‘single parents with children aged under three are 
not entitled to the free childcare offered by the Government.’ - it seems that this would be 
a group most in need of it!) 

126849458 
Single parents with children under five who have an income that is not work related 
should be excluded from this 100% reduction. 

126851598 
If anything I think single parents should be encouraged as much as possible to stay at 
home with young children 

126856615 

I support the idea that everyone contributes towards Council Services. A 91.5% reduction 
is very generous. Assistance should be restricted to band E and lower. Council Tax is levied 
on property by value. If you are in a band F or higher property you should consider moving 
or selling to a less expensive property.  Countless people have to make this decision - to 
cut their cloth to suit their circumstances. 

126857609 
What about us residents in the middle? Not high earners, but not on benefits yet we don’t 
qualify for any help and still have to pay our mortgage, plus work and bring up children? 

126861028 everyone should pay something 

126863299 
I think this is much fairer especially for single parents with children under the age of 5 as 
food and utility bills are always increasing. 

Page 58



 

44 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

126869747 

Since single parents with children between age 3 and 5 do qualify for free childcare then 
would it not be reasonable to confine this change to those with children under 3, as the 
free child care offered between the ages of 3 and 5 removes the obstacle to working 
posed by the need to find childcare. 

126871030 
I think once a child reaches 5 the parent should return to some sort of work albeit part 
time and the reduction amended depending on earnings. 

126878858 

There should be a time limit to this proposal. Or budgeted amount to use for several 
years. As kids get older, 3-5 years, some people will be able to work or arrange childcare 
with family.  I have been single and received the 25% discount whilst living on &#163;15.- 
food budget per week. I work full time. I don’t have any children but worked really hard to 
make ends meet. It’s an expensive area to live. 

126881280 
This is a short term fix - it would be more useful to the many people to make childcare 
more affordable 

126881161 
Think the band E limit should still be used as support should be given to those most in 
need 

126891992 
To someone who is not familiar with Council Tax Reductions, you really haven&#39;t 
explained what this change would mean in practice. 

126832610 

Your survey does NOT take pensioners into account, and an increasing number are 
suffering. Many of the people you are endeavouring to assist don&#39;t deserve a 
discount. 

126989877 Great to see a local council trying to help people that need it. 

126990322 If you live in an expensive property, you should downsize 

127038819 91.5 to be still applied to band D and below. 

127083686 But there should also be a limit as to how many children that person has. 

127099371 

Anything that helps young families has to be a good thing. Possibly some financial 
planning might help some too. There are many people unable to manage their own affairs. 
A little help would go a long way. 

127101113 
Perhaps keep the 91.5 for non working single parents and use the 100% for those working. 
Try and encourage people to work? 

127103876 
Consider single parents being entitled to free childcare hours, or those parents who are 
also carers for the other parent 

127105648 

I think you should go further than for single parents with children under 5. Your proposal 
assumes child care is the main financial burden for single parents - there are others: rent, 
clothing, food, transport, bills etc etc... and those burdens affect a far broader cohort than 
single people with children under 5. Go further and help more! 

127180232 
All three of the proposed changes seem desirable. Can all be accommodated within 
budget or is there an order of preference? 

127180609 
There should be occasional checks to make sure single parents ‘are’ single parents! (i.e. 
previous partner/s are not living in the same house). 

127245049 
I feel that if this amount of reduction is being given more spot checks for benefit fraud will 
have to be carried out. 

127282432 To keep the band E restriction element of the calculation 

127333409 
children benefit from a mother being home when they are under five and to a large 
degree when they go to school up to thirteen 

127611431 None 

127634713 
Single parent myself feel like I’m being punished going back to work as council tax will go 
up 

Page 59



 

45 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

127660292 

I fear that this will further encourage teenagers to have children for the wrong reasons. I 
am a secondary school teacher and hear low-ability students discussing what they are 
entitled to if they have a child. Many girls feel unloved at home and want a child to care 
for. Unfortunately they fall into the same cycle that their own mothers often have in that 
they are not capable of caring properly for a child, neglect it and end up having more 
children by multiple fathers all of which end up in our schools, often disruptive and low-
ability. This is skewing the overall ability of our cohort and resulting in increasing numbers 
of SEN children. How has your children’s social care budget changed over the last 10 
years?  

127723491 

The formation of single parent families should not be encouraged. All citizens should 
contribute something towards community costs. If some allowance is to be made it should 
be to those with children under 3 years who do not have access to free childcare. 

127743314 
If lowering the bills for this groups of people means that bills increase for other people I 
strongly disagree with this proposal. 

127744375 
I firmly believe that persons (particularly women with children under 5 who are working or 
not working) deserve. Even if this means I should pay more tax that’s fine with me. 

127744787 
Live within your means, don’t expect an easy ride - having children is a choice therefore 
should be budgeted for by individual 

128103512 Council tax is a crippling expense to such families 

128201047 

I am concerned by the band E element of the proposal. how will this be seen by those 
working on low wages will work be seen to be worthwhile, will this have a sliding scale, 
means tested. what will this cost 

128265192 

The Police and Crime Commissioner has always taken the view that the local council 
knows what is best for its local community. As such we will support whichever option you 
believe is most appropriate.   This is a generic comment from the PCC rather than a 
specific response to your consultation proposals. You can include this comment in your 
consultation feedback but I’m not sure it adds much value in terms of selecting a specific 
option. 

128501615 

I work with many single parents who live rent free/low rent, have help with council tax, 
receive benefits yet still can afford cars, new phones, holidays, clothes etc. I think their 
current entitlements therefore covers their needs. 

128581722 

Unless the other missing parent has died, single parents should not expect the rest of 
society to pay extra additional cost to their life choices. rights should come together with 
responsibilities. All need to contribute, not just money but actions too, towards a way of 
life for future sustainability, there has to be some level of responsibility to keep any 
society viable for everyone.  Single parents already get preferential housing to young 
couples for housing who too would like children, when they can afford a family. 

126845133 
Is this means tested? Are you really suggesting that very high value properties would be 
exempt? 

126890625 
It is difficult to comment when one does not know how many people are going to be 
affected by these changes. 

126975839 The applicant is not acting fraudulently. 

127091304 

I work with younger children and all the single parents with under 5s that I know, can 
afford decent clothes, get given council houses, have cars, can afford a nice Christmas, big 
tvs, mobile phones, alot smoke/drugs, go out out, all whilst on benefits and not working. 
And now you are saying they shouldn’t pay any council tax. I’m clearly doing it wrong as I 
work 40 hours a week, am a single parent (I do get a 25% reduction as am only adult) and 
am struggling but get no help. No doubt you will be putting the council tax up for the rest 
of us working mugs to cover this if it goes ahead. The system is wrong. 

127282024 To keep the band E restriction element of the calculation 

Page 60



 

46 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

127611713 

I get a 25% reduction due to being a single adult but no other help. I have 2 teenagers, I 
am on a low wage and work 40hrs/week and can barely cover my basic bills. And yet the 
people you are saying you will help further (and I know many, as I work with under 5s) 
already get rent help, have nice phones, go on holidays, often smoke/weed, buy nice 
clothes etc and I would therefore suggest that further support, which I suspect I would be 
helping to pay for, isn’t needed. 

 
 
Proposed change: 
To widen the definition of who is considered disabled, in order to be exempt from paying 
council tax (eg CTR will be calculated on 100 per cent of their council tax bill and their 
actual council tax band).  
 

Response ID Comments 

126832814 It needs to be widened further, this is not enough. 

126833014 
A disabled person is a disabled person regardless of what band they live in, they should be 
treated equally 

126847623 

Again I’m afraid I don’t understand the wording of this. Is the proposal to widen the 
definition of who is considered disabled (and that the benefits due to those who are 
disabled remain the same), or - as the ‘eg’ in brackets implies, to change the benefits due 
to those who are qualified disabled (increasing the reduction possible on their council tax). 
Or both?  You say ‘When we made changes to the 2014 scheme, we decided that those 
considered disabled would be exempt from any negative changes to the scheme due to 
their difficulty in finding work.’ - I don’t know what the 2014 scheme is that you are 
referring to and why there is now perceived to be a ‘negative change’ in it (which your 
sentence implies that there is).  You then say that there are elements within Universal 
Credit ‘which perform the same function as disability premiums’ but then say that one of 
these is ‘no longer available to new applicants’ which implies that there aren’t in fact the 
same benefits available as there were... So are you saying that Universal Credit actually 
doesn’t provide as many benefits for the disabled and so you would like to even this out 
by giving them greater relief from Council Tax?  If so, it’s still not clear what that greater 
relief is...  Sorry! 

126850875 
There should be one definition of ‘disabled’ for all assistance payments and one properly 
linked to the ability to earn or otherwise. 

126851598 We have a duty of care to those who are less able 

126851456 

it would help to know more about how ‘wide’ the definition will become as some ‘hidden’ 
disabilities should definitely be included (dementia etc) as this is without doubt life 
changing but others may not necessarily impact in the same way. 

126856615 
I disagree with the idea of helping those in band F of higher. These are the most expensive 
properties. If the Band E restriction were to be retained I would agree with the policy. 

126857609 
Those on disability benefit should be tested and verified by doctors - those on universal 
credits should be distinguished between disabled and non workers 

126869747 
I am unclear from the explanation as to who would qualify for disability under the 
proposed changes. I am therefore unable to comment. 

126871030 
This needs clear definition of which type of disability is to be considered in order to 
answer effectively 

126878858 It should only apply for council tax bands A-C  

126881280 Depending on how disability affects employability 

Page 61



 

47 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

126881161 
Agree in general but not with removal of the higher tax band limits as needs to be 
concentrated on those in greatest need 

126975003 
I would hope the ‘criteria’ for who is deemed disabled is not set so high it misses people 
who are in much need of the monetary support of not paying/paying reduced Council Tax. 

126990322 Cap the council tax band 

127101113 I feel it’s fair as it is. 

127103876 

People who are disabled through their own fault, I.e. obesity, should not be given more 
rights. They should be encouraged to get fit and back to work, not paid to be obese. Those 
residents who have a genuine disability should be treated better, including mental health 
disabilities. 

127105648 Don’t forget invisible disabilities! 

127180232 
All three of the proposed changes seem desirable. Can all be accommodated within 
budget or is there an order of preference? 

127180609 There should be tactful checks to ensure the disability of the person is genuine. 

127225341 
I don’t know enough to understand the complexities of the assessment but the impact 
sounds broadly beneficial to disabled working age people 

127611431 None 

127634713 
I have low rate DLA due to mild anxiety and depression Asperger syndrome and arthritis it 
can restrict my work therefore my income 

127723491 

You do not state the degree of disability. I would agree if this exemption is confined to 
those with a ‘severe disability’ rating. Otherwise I disagree. The label ‘disabled’ covers a 
wide range of ailments, many of which are not severe and thus may not prevent an 
individual from making a contribution from his/her Government Benefits. 

127743314 

There are so many different types of disability, some people have difficulty breaking, some 
cannot use their arms. Not all disabled people use a wheelchair, so their disability seems 
invisible to others. People who cannot use their arms cannot work in normal hours 
employment. I would strongly agree to this proposal if moderately disabled people are 
included as well as the severely disabled. 

127744787 I live and work with disability but don’t expect any allowance. 

128103512 disable people cannot earn money - or enough of it to pay council tax. 

128265192 

The Police and Crime Commissioner has always taken the view that the local council 
knows what is best for its local community. As such we will support whichever option you 
believe is most appropriate.   This is a generic comment from the PCC rather than a 
specific response to your consultation proposals. You can include this comment in your 
consultation feedback but I’m not sure it adds much value in terms of selecting a specific 
option. 

126845133 
I don’t feel able to comment on this without further detail of the proposed changes and 
their impact. 

126975839 The applicant is not acting fraudulently. 

 
 
 
  

Page 62



 

48 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: consultation on proposed changes for 2020/21  
Consultation summary report, December 2019 

Proposed change: 
To disregard Bereavement Support Payments as income when calculating an applicant’s 
council tax reduction amount.  
 

Response ID Comments 

126851598 Those who are bereaved need as much support as they can get 

126851456 
it is difficult to fully understand the impact without knowing what amount the 
bereavement support payment may amount to. 

126856615 
If the payment is disregarded by central government; local government should do 
likewise. 

126869747 On the assumption that BSP is a temporary benefit I would support this change. 

126878858 Again should be time limited 

126975003 This seems a much fairer and supportive proposal. 

127103876 Why would you get a reduction? Doesn’t take sense 

127180232 
All three of the proposed changes seem desirable. Can all be accommodated within 
budget or is there an order of preference? 

127180609 I totally agree with the above. 

127611431 None 

127723491 

The loss of a contributing partner can cause cash flow problems even in affluent homes. 
Providing this BSP is time limited. I agree with the change proposed since it would be 
pointless to allow it to diminish the very cash-flow it is meant to increase. 

127743314 

If someone dies and they are a parent to young children I agree to this proposal. Others 
should have life insurance policies, etc? Special note: I have many friends who are 
pensioners and their council tax is now more than their mortgage that they paid when 
they were working. Any increase in the tax would cause hardship. I am concerned where 
the money will come from to pay for these three proposals. 

127744787 
Everyone should plan for these eventualities as sad as they are, it is the one certainty we 
all have to face 

128103512 
Bereavement is already something that subtracts from the ability to contribute, do not 
punish it more. 

128201047 I assume this payment is for under 18s 

128265192 

The Police and Crime Commissioner has always taken the view that the local council 
knows what is best for its local community. As such we will support whichever option 
you believe is most appropriate.   This is a generic comment from the PCC rather than a 
specific response to your consultation proposals. You can include this comment in your 
consultation feedback but I’m not sure it adds much value in terms of selecting a specific 
option. 

128581722 

There are many people who live alone with one income and will never get any additional 
government payments, have worked all their adult life and contributed to the taxes. Any 
pension from anywhere is counted for income tax. Single occupants already receive a 
reduction of 25% not 50%, why should some be singled out for extra reductions and not 
all, or reduce the council tax on an age related bases as older people have to pay for help 
to do general jobs they can no longer physically do themselves. No easy way to keep a 
fair balance. 

126975839 The applicant is not acting fraudulently. 

 
END 

Page 63



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 23 January 2020 Page 1 09/01/20

Scrutiny work programme
23 January 2020

MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

Scrutiny Committee 
23 Jan 2020

Council tax reduction 
scheme

To consider proposed 
changes for 2020/21

Councillor Andrew 
Crawford

Paul Howden
paul.howden@southandv
ale.gov.uk 

Scrutiny Committee 
6 Feb 2020

Budget 2020/21 To consider the final budget 
proposals 

Councillor Andrew 
Crawford

Simon Hewings
simon.hewings@southan
dvale.gov.uk 

Scrutiny Committee 
6 Feb 2020

Community 
infrastructure levy 
spending strategy

To consider the strategy  Councillor Bethia 
Thomas

Jayne Bolton
jayne.bolton@southandv
ale.gov.uk 

Scrutiny Committee 
6 Feb 2020

Planning appeals 
2018/19

To consider the annual report  Councillor Catherine 
Webber

Tracy Smith
tracy.smith@southandval
e.gov.uk 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 
3 Mar 2020

Draft corporate plan 
2020-2024 and delivery 
framework

To comment on the draft 
corporate plan and delivery 
framework  

Councillor Debby 
Hallett

Michelle Wells
michelle.wells@southand
vale.gov.uk 
Ben Coleman 
ben.coleman@southandv
ale.gov.uk 

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:paul.howden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:paul.howden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.bolton@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.bolton@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:tracy.smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:tracy.smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ben.coleman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ben.coleman@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 23 January 2020 Page 2 09/01/20

Scrutiny Committee 
26 Mar 2020

Delivery of affordable 
housing

To receive a progress report Councillor Bethia 
Thomas

Jayne Bolton
jayne.bolton@southandv
ale.gov.uk 

Scrutiny Committee 
26 Mar 2020

Planning monitoring 
report 2018/19

To review the annual report  Councillor Catherine 
Webber

Richard Sandith
richard.sandith@southan
dvale.gov.uk 

Items for future meetings (dates to be determined)

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 
June 2020?

Oxfordshire Plan 2050 To respond to the 
consultation draft plan  

Councillor Catherine 
Webber

Adrian Duffield
adrian.duffield@southand
vale.gov.uk 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 

Civil parking 
enforcement

Councillor Jenny 
Hannaby

John Backley
john.backley@southandv
ale.gov.uk 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 

Homes in multiple 
occupation

Implementation of legislation Councillor Jenny 
Hannaby

Phil Ealey
phil.ealey@southandvale
.gov.uk 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 

Unlawful encampments Councillor Jenny 
Hannaby

Liz Hayden
liz.hayden@southandval
e.gov.uk 

P
age 65

mailto:jayne.bolton@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.bolton@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.sandith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.sandith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:phil.ealey@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:phil.ealey@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 23 January 2020 Page 3 09/01/20

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 

Inter-authority 
agreement

Cabinet member for 
corporate services

Adrianna Partridge
adrianna.partridge@sout
handvale.gov.uk 

Scrutiny Committee A34 diversion routing Council adopted a motion on 
9 October 2019 asking 
Scrutiny Committee to 
consider this.  

Leader of the Council Adrian Duffield
adrian.duffield@southand
vale.gov.uk 

Scrutiny Committee Regular budget 
monitoring

Councillor Andrew 
Crawford

Simon Hewings
simon.hewings@southan
dvale.gov.uk 

Scrutiny Committee Strategic property 
review

Cabinet member for 
development and 
regeneration

Suzanne Malcolm
suzanne.malcolm@south
andvale.gov.uk 

Scrutiny Committee The Charter, Abingdon Councillor Bethia 
Thomas

Suzanne Malcolm
suzanne.malcolm@south
andvale.gov.uk 

P
age 66

mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Council tax reduction scheme 2020/21
	Appendix - consultation summary

	7 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings

